STATE OF NEVADA
EXECUTIVE BRANCH AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

May 1, 2012

The Executive Branch Audit Committee and the Division of Internal Audits met on May 1, 2011,
at the Capitol Building Annex, Guinn Room, Second Floor, 101 N. Carson Street, Carson City,
Nevada. The meeting was video conferenced between the Capitol Building Annex and the
Grant Sawyer State Office Building, Governor's Office, 5565 East Washington Avenue, Las
Vegas, Nevada

MEMBERS PRESENT: Governor, Brian Sandoval, Chairman
Lieutenant Governor, Brian Krolicki

Secretary of State, Ross Miller
(absent, schedule conflict)

Treasurer, Kate Marshall (via telephone)
Controller, Kim Wallin

Attorney General, Catherine Cortez Masto
(via video conference in Las Vegas)

Dana L. Bridgman, CPA, Public Member
(absent, schedule conflict)

DIVISION OF INTERNAL AUDITS

STAFF PRESENT: Steve Weinberger, Interim Administrator
Warren Lowman, Executive Branch Auditor IV
Vita Ozoude, Executive Branch Auditor |V
Dennis Stoddard, Executive Branch Auditor Il
Connie Boynton, Administrative Assistant IV

OTHERS PRESENT: Copy of sign-in sheet available, contact Connie
Boynton,  Administrative  Assistant IV  at
cboynton@admin.nv.gov .

The agenda for this meeting was posted in accordance with the Nevada Open Meeting Law and
was mailed to groups and individuals as requested.




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

May 1, 2012

Page 2

A. Call to Order
Governor Sandoval, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 9:08 a.m. Governor Sandoval
welcomed those present. Roll was called and a quorum was noted.

B. Public comments
Governor Sandoval addressed the public for comments in Carson City and Las Vegas.
There were none.

Controller Wallin noted to the Committee that Jennifer Chisel was her Deputy Attorney
General (DAG) and asked if it would pose any conflict.

Governor Sandoval asked Ms. Chisel if she thought it posed any conflict.

Ms. Chisel announced she represented the Committee and felt she could represent as a
whole without conflict.

C. For Possible Action — Approval of the June 13, 2011, Executive Branch Audit
Committee Meeting Minutes.

Governor Sandoval asked the members if they had comments regarding the minutes.

Lieutenant Governor Krolicki noted there was a title error on the first page and it was
corrected.

Controller Wallin asked if the minutes could be sent out sooner if the next meeting is
scheduled months away.

Mr. Weinberger said the plan was not to wait so long for the next EBAC meeting and was
hoping to schedule the next meeting in the fall. He agreed the minutes would be sent out
sooner.

A quorum was lost and a recess taken from 9:11 to 9:20 a.m. due to cell phone range from
Treasurer Marshall who was in travel mode. At 9:20 Treasurer re-connected with the
Committee members and Governor Sandoval asked Treasurer Marshall if she had any
comments or questions on the minutes. She did not and the minutes were approved.

Motion: Move for approval of the minutes of the June 13, 2011 meeting.
By: Lieutenant Governor Krolicki

Second: Controller Wallin

Vote:  Motion passed unanimously for those present.

D. For Possible Action — Approval of the Division of Internal Audits 2011 Annual Report
released September 28, 2011. (NRS 353A.065)

Mr. Weinberger stated the Annual report was released last year, and it was the standard
report that is issued every year. He said it included the Division’s performance measures
for each section.




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

May 1, 2012

Page 3

Controller Wallin said the Annual report contained projections of 100 percent for fiscal year
2010 and 2011 on page 17 for recommendations that were fully implemented. She said
page seven showed that only 90.55 percent were fully implemented. She wanted an
explanation of what was being measured.

Mr. Weinberger explained that the 90.55 percent on page seven was performance
measures for their performance audits. He said their recommendations were to research
using better business practices and generate more revenue or save on expenses.

Mr. Weinberger stated that page 17 contains performance measures for Post Review
recommendations which were strictly for compliance. He said the Post Review section finds
transactions that do not follow established guidelines; whether it was the State
Administrative Manual (SAM) or a federal procedure or statute. He pointed out the agencies
do not want to be non-compliant with anything that is required and, he said that is why the
results tend to be 100 percent.

Controller Wallin questioned Mr. Weinberger whether it was a good performance measure
or not because it is always at 100 percent and annually the agencies examined were 33
percent.

Mr. Weinberger replied they would be better off using the percentage of agencies examined
and then use the customer surveys that were sent out. He stated historically the post
review recommendations implemented had always been 100 percent. He added that the
agencies have specific required guidelines and, there was no excuse for not following those
guidelines.

Controller Wallin said it looked confusing because there were the Audits, follow-ups and
then Post Reviews to make sure of compliance. But she said basically Post Review, were
transactions processed for error rate impact.

Mr. Weinberger said the Post Reviews objective was strictly compliance with requirements
for the agencies, and they were to make sure the agencies comply.

Mr. Weinberger added the performance audit measures were regarding the
recommendations made to help agencies save or generate additional funding. He also said
there was a little subjectivity there, because the agency might dispute the recommendations
or might not have the funding for the recommendations made.

Controller Wallin said that based on the audits there could be added value by having Post
Review do some of the compliance for the Single Audit.

Mr. Weinberger stated the Division was headed in that direction. He added Post Review
starts with reviewing agencies expenditures for compliance with State requirements. He
said if they happen to find an expenditure for a reimbursement to a sub-recipient from a
grant, they would check it for compliance with federal requirements.

Governor Sandoval asked for confirmation from the Attorney General that she could hear
the meeting from the Las Vegas location.

Attorney General Masto confirmed and commented there were members of the public at the
Las Vegas location but they were off video range.




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

May 1, 2012

Page 4

Governor Sandoval thanked the Attorney General and the meeting continued.

Lieutenant Governor Krolicki commented every dollar spent on Internal Audits benefited the
state $73. He said it was a great number and, it was a good investment for the state. He
said he hoped to see triple digits soon and was proud of the Internal Audits team.

Mr. Weinberger thanked the Lieutenant Governor and said they would do all they could. He
said that it covered fiscal year 2011 and had an updated schedule on tab 8 for fiscal year
2012. He also said it went through March of this year and, the number had actually gone

up.

Lieutenant Governor Krolicki stated we touted that number regularly in prior years, and he
congratulated the team for the achievement.

Mr. Weinberger thanked him.
Governor Sandoval asked the committee if there were any comments or questions.
There were none.

Motion: Move for approval of the Division of Internal Audits 2011 Annual Report.
By: Attorney General Masto

Second: Lieutenant Governor Krolicki

Vote:  Motion passed unanimously for those present.

E. Presentation of the Division of Internal Audits’ six-month follow-up status reports.
(NRS 353A.090)
Mr. Weinberger said the six-month follow-up reports could be found on tab 4. He said that
in the past, the Committee was asked if they preferred all of them be presented or some
specific follow-ups be presented.

Governor Sandoval indicated he would appreciate a brief presentation on each follow-up.

Mr. Weinberger acknowledged and told the committee that he would present the first follow-
up on the Office of the Secretary of State, Business License audit.

Mr. Weinberger stated the Office of the Secretary of State (Office) performed many
functions, including reporting and certifying state election results, regulating Nevada’s
security industry, maintaining commercial recordings documents for Nevada businesses and
issuing business licenses.

Mr. Weinberger reported the audit addressed the issuing of business licenses. He stated a
Nevada business license authorizes a business to provide goods and services. He added,
the initial and annual renewal business license fees were $200. He said some businesses
can qualify for a business license fee exemption. Mr. Weinberger also said, businesses
must apply with the Office to receive a business license and/or exemption. He said unless
exempt, the business pays a fee, and the office issues a business license and, if the
business applies for an exemption, the Office would issue an exemption certificate.




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

May 1, 2012

Page 5

Mr. Weinberger reported the audit provided four recommendations, and the Office fully
implemented three and partially implemented one:

v The Office implemented our recommendation to evaluate obtaining information
needed to determine whether businesses would meet the exemption requirements.
The Office implemented a declaration of exemption process which requires
applicants to declare under penalty of perjury they meet the requirements of the
exemption. The Office represents that this process reduced monthly exemption
claims by 83 percent resulting in a monthly revenue increase of approximately one
million dollars.

v" The Office fully implemented our recommendation to consider the cost benefit and
resources needed to use local government data or techniques to find unlicensed
businesses. It reclassified one position for which it is currently recruiting and has a
contractor working on the process.

v" The Office fully implemented our recommendation to evaluate the cost benefit of
verifying compliance with business license exemptions. The Office would have to
maintain databases containing large amounts of both public and personal
identification information and currently does not have the resources to do so.

v The Office partially implemented our recommendation to coordinate with State
agencies and local governments to ensure they collect Nevada business
identification numbers as a part of their processes. The Office started coordinating
with State agencies and local governments and notes that four state organizations,
five cities and one county are either collecting or incorporating Nevada business
identification numbers in their processes.

Mr. Weinberger concluded his presentation and asked the committee if they had any
questions.

Controller Wallin indicated the Controller’s office worked in conjunction with the Office of the
Secretary of State in setting up vendors into their system. She said their system was
changed to require vendors to have a Nevada business license. She added they give the
vendor 30 days to get the information. The process stops when the vendor fails to give the
information. She then commented that they wouldn't pay a vendor until they get their
Nevada business license. Controller Wallin said they were working with agencies to make
sure that vendors had Nevada business licenses. She commented it seemed to be working
great.

Governor Sandoval asked the committee if there were any comments or questions.
There were none.

The next six-month follow-up was the Division of Welfare and Support Services, Child Care
Subsidy Program. Vita Ozoude presented the follow-up. Representing the Division was
Jack Zenteno, Chief, Child Care Program.

Mr. Ozoude reported the Division was within the Department of Health and Human Services
and operated temporary programs throughout the state to assist Nevada families, the
elderly and the disabled. He said one the programs operated by the Division was called the
Child Care Assistance and Development Program, and the purpose of the program was to
help eligible families afford child care and allow parents to work or attend school. The
program helps parents by subsidizing a portion or ali of their child care costs.




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

May 1, 2012

Page 6

Mr. Ozoude reported the audit focused on improving the Division’s Child Care Subsidy
Program. He said 11 recommendations were issued and nine were fully implemented with
two partially implemented. Mr. Ozoude said he would begin with the fully implemented
recommendations:

v" The Division developed and implemented a policy requiring contractors to monitor
billings when providers appear to fail to meet child care licensing requirements.

v" The Division developed and implemented a new policy and procedure to refer
alleged provider failures to meet child care licensing requirements to the Division of
Child and Family Services.

v" To comply with the recommendation to only pay recreational providers for the child’s
actual attendance, the Division reduced the number of approved slots and budgets
for each provider as an alternative solution effective July 1, 2011. The Division
represented the new method stabilizes funding for recreational providers while
reducing program expenditures by $850,000 annually.

Governor Sandoval broke into Mr. Ozoude’s presentation and explained that he did not
have to read the entire presentation but concentrate on a question regarding this particular
section.

Governor Sandoval said the third was implemented in July 2011. He asked if we have
saved any money since implementation last July.

Mr. Ozoude referred the question to Mr. Zenteno.

Mr. Zenteno replied it was correct, and they did implement the recommendation on July 1.
He stated they had seen significant savings from the reduction of the contracted amounts to
the Boys and Girls Clubs, along with the Head Start programs.

Governor Sandoval asked for quantification.

Mr. Zenteno said the amount was roughly $850,000. They had some additional program
cuts and that brought it down approximately another 20 percent.

Governor Sandoval asked what happens to the money saved.

Mr. Zenteno said they are currently dealing with the budget shortfall. He said it was their
expectation that the timeline of the wait list be decreased since implementing the wait list
January 1, so they could release the wait list.

Governor Sandoval said it worked out well, because they were moving the money over to be
able to serve more families.

Mr. Zenteno replied, absolutely.

Lieutenant Governor Krolicki asked if the list was triaged by who was there first or by a
particular situation.

Mr. Zenteno said both were used, along with budget tiers. He said people become eligible
based on their percentage of poverty. People at 90 and 95 percent would be the first they
would identify. Furthermore, he said as soon as they have savings, they would identify
families that are on the waiting list at 99.5 percent. He said they then take them off the




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

May 1, 2012

Page 7

waiting list and, when additional funds become available, they would have 80 percent they
could also take off the list. He concluded, they take the neediest off the list first and then
continue to work down the line.

Governor Sandoval asked the committee if there were any comments or questions on the
remaining six-month follow-ups, which included The Department of Health and Human
Services, Division of Health Care Financing and Policy, Nevada Check up, and the Personal
Care Services.

There were none.

F. Presentation regarding ongoing follow-up requested by the Committee.
Mr. Lowman presented the Committee requested follow-up on the Division of Mental Health
and Developmental Services and the monitoring of doctor attendance. This was Mr.
Lowman’s third follow-up of the audit on doctor attendance at Rawson Neal Hospital.
Representing the Division of Mental Health and Developmental Services were Interims
Administrator, Richard Whitley and State Medical Director Dr. Tracey Green.

Mr. Lowman previously reported on the Division’s progress in July and August of 2011. He
said the present follow-up includes a review of data from the second quarter of the current
fiscal year. Mr. Lowman stated the Division was undergoing a leadership change since the
last report, and they were working to implement the recommendation to monitor doctor
attendance.

Mr. Lowman stated the review showed doctor attendance remained at about the same level
as when the Division first conducted the audit, approximately two years ago. He also stated
doctors were working in the hospital for about four to five hours of a 10-hour shift in the
Patient Observation Unit and five to six hours of an eight-hour shift in the hospital wards. Mr.
Lowman said there was a slight uptick in attendance in September 2011, when a sign-
in/sign-out sheet was used to attempt to monitor doctor attendance at work.

Mr. Lowman said the new Division leadership implemented several actions beginning in
January 2012 to monitor doctor attendance. These included:

v Appointing a new doctor leadership team in the hospital.

v Creating review and report requirements.

v" Enhancing the hospital electronic access control system.

Mr. Lowman reported the next scheduled follow up on the Division’s efforts would be at the
committee meeting and will be the annual review of all the outstanding recommendations.

Governor Sandoval thanked Dr. Green for being present and said he wanted to get to the
bottom of the issue. The Governor asked for clarification on a doctor’s reported working an
eight hour shift, but actually only working five-six hours shift. He asked if they were doing
charts during the other portion of the day. He wanted to make sure the state was paying the
doctors for services and not for simply attendance. Governor Sandoval said it was his
understanding that before, some of them had other jobs and private practices and in
essence were double-billing. Governor Sandoval wanted to make sure the state was getting
its money’s worth.

Governor Sandoval asked why they weren’t supportive of requiring doctors to sign-in and
sign-out.




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

May 1, 2012

Page 8

Dr. Green replied she was serving as the Acting Medical Director of Mental Health and
Developmental Services. First, she felt the sign-in/sign-out and key card methods were
inadequate in accurately representing all of the time of the physicians. She mentioned
some of the important areas where there was no reflection of the key cards. Furthermore,
she said there were no key cards in the medical records areas or the administrative meeting
areas, as well as the financial meeting or residency teaching areas. She said there wasn't
really a system in place to monitor the physicians and all their time. She also said it was
difficult to look at the hours and really know whether they accurately represented the hours
the physicians worked.

Dr. Green said in response to the stopping of the sign-in/sign-out sheet, she saw it more as
an arbitrary sign-in at the start of the day and sign-out at the end of the day, and it was not
being monitored by a constant physician representative. She said it did not allow for what
was occurring in between the sign-in/sign-out process time, and it wasn't giving a complete
picture of accuracy of the physicians there.

Dr. Green described since that time there had been a number of changes that occurred.
She said they were all aware of the difficulty they had in the past in hiring physicians at
Rawson Neal. She expressed how happy they were to say that had changed. She also
said at one time they had a hodgepodge of different types of physicians hired. She said
they had contract, part-time contracts, state employees and locums, and she said currently,
they have no contracts and no locum physicians on the inpatient service. Dr. Green said
they were currently all state employees.

Dr. Green explained that in the past, they had no medical director leadership and they now
had a full-time medical director and a full-time associate medical director.

Dr. Green described in regards to monitoring they were using a three-part system that had
more accurately reflected the hours worked. She said the first part were the key cards. She
also said she thought the auditors revealed something that needed to be looked at further.
Dr. Green said they have a single point of entry using the key cards, but she said the
doctors were using that one point of entry for entry and exit. She also pointed out they
monitored all movement with key cards.

Dr Green secondly reported they had outlook calendars that were checked on a regular
basis, with sign-in/sign-out at all medical meetings and all medical records for accountability.

Dr. Green thirdly reported they use time sheets. She said the timesheet showed time off,
along with vacation and sick leave. In regard to monitoring, they had the medical director
monitoring and reconciling on a biweekly basis. Dr Green explained if there were gaps in
the data or any poor-performing physicians or outliers in any large group, they were having
one-on-one consultation and professional counseling sessions with them. She said if
necessary, there would be further follow-up.

Dr. Green reported they now had a system of both monitoring and measuring for real
accuracy of physician attendance.

Governor Sandoval complimented Dr. Green in taking a leadership role on the issue. He
said he was concerned about patient care and pay for employees who were not working.
The Governor said he didn't believe that was something that gets emphasized enough. He







